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THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT

Strategic Report
The Directors present their Strategic Report and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Group (comprising ThinkSmart Europe Ltd (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries) during the year was
the provision of lease and rental financing services in the United Kingdom (“UK™) and the holding of a financial asset.

Business review

The financial position at the end of the period is satisfactory. The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 10. The
profit for the financial year ending 30 June 2021 of £71.9 million has been transferred to reserves (financial period ending 30 Sune
2020: Profit of £52.7 million). There were no dividends declared or paid during this financial year (2020: £nil).

Excluding the gain on financial instruments of £71.3 million (2020: £54.4 million) relating to the revaluation of the Group’s retained
holding in Clearpay Finance Ltd (“Clearpay”) and other gains of £1.45 million (2020: £nil) from the settlement of the legal
proceedings against Carphone Warehouse, the business incurred a loss before and after tax for the year of £0.8 million (2020: loss
of £1.7 million) which was driven by the further decline in business volumes from its sole retail partner, Dixons Carphone (DC),
and the cessation of new business from February 2021. Inertia income performed well throughout the year as did insurance
commission income which, combined with the managed cost reduction, mitigated the impact of the reduced volumes of new
business. In addition, the UK business continued to provide an outsourced call centre customer support service for Clearpay which
generated revenue of £0.9m (2020: £0.5m).

Overall UK volumes at £0.5m for the year were down 74% on prior year of £1.9m driven by reduced volumes of established products
due to business change within DC. SmartPlan volumes decreased from £1.6m to £0.5m, Upgrade Anytime volumes decreased from
£0.2m to £35k and Flexible Leasing volumes decreased from £0.1m to £3k for the year.

As announced on 29 November 2019, the Group issued a claim against Carphone Warehouse in respect of the Flexible Leasing
contract and its predecessor Upgrade Everytime contract and, as announced on 10 August 2020, the Group agreed a settlement with
Dixons Carphone (DC) of £1.45m inclusive of costs. As part of this settlement, the Group agreed with DC to the orderly winding
up of all its agreements with DC including Flexible Leasing, SmartPlan and Upgrade Anytime. The Group ceased writing new
business in February 2021 and its leasing business is now in managed wind-down.

In the year to 30 June 2021, all of ThinkSmart's new business volumes were generated from its agreements with DC. The Group
will continue to service its existing customer base ensuring the fair treatment of customers, along with any new volumes generated
during the orderly winding up of the three contracts and will continue to benefit from the cash generated from this business.

Other operating expenses reduced by 30% to £3.2m (2020: £4.6m) and remained controlled, aligned to current business volumes.

Due to the reduced business volumes being generated through established products, the Group diversified its product range in
FY2018 with the launch of Clearpay, a new and innovative consumer credit product. On 23 August 2018 the Company sold 90% of
Clearpay to Afterpay Ltd (formerly Afterpay Touch Group Ltd “Afterpay”). The Company retains a 10%* holding in Clearpay
which provides the Company with further upside potential.

*A proportion of the 10% retained shareholding (up to 3.5% of the total share capital of Clearpay) will be made available to employees of Clearpay under an employee share ownership plan.

Future Developments
The sale of 90% of Clearpay to Afterpay in August 2018 has been a significant pivot point for the Group. The initial sale delivered
£7.73 million profit after tax which significantly strengthened the Group’s balance sheet.

The Group’s remaining 10%* holding in Clearpay is subject to a 5 year call option by Afterpay and ThinkSmart holds a reciprocal
put option 6 months later to be able to sell the remaining holding to Afterpay at a price calculated on agreed principles based on
market valuations at the time of option exercise. ThinkSmart’s holding in Clearpay is held as a financial instrument at fair value
through profit or loss. As at 30 June 2021 the fair value of this asset, net of the 3.5% ESOP commitment, was determined to be
£125.0 million.

In August 2021 Square Inc (“Square™) and A fterpay announced the intention for Square to acquire Afterpay in a deal which valued
Afterpay at US$29 billion (AUS$39 billion). The transaction is expected to complete in the first quarter of the calendar year 2022.
Under the terms of the agreement that ThinkSmart has with Afterpay, relating to the sale of the Group's remaining holding in
Clearpay, a change of control of Afterpay gives Afterpay the right to exercise its call option to purchase the remaining shares in
Clearpay from ThinkSmart at any time following said change of control. The exercise price for the call option will be determined
by the same pre-agreed valuation principles whether or not the option is exercised early.
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THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT

As of February 2021, the Group has ceased writing any new business volumes following the termination all of its agreements with
its sole retail partner, DC, including Flexible Leasing, SmartPlan and Upgrade Anytime. All remaining active lease contracts have
a minimum term (of up to four years) during which time the Group will continue to service its existing customers, collect out the
lease receivables and realise the commission, inertia and insurance revenue on the leases written to February 2021. In addition, the
business continues to provide an outsourced call centre customer support service for Clearpay.

The Group will continue to align its cost base with its volumes and review the ongoing strategy of its leasing arm together with
continuing to look at options to leverage its established technology platform across its core leasing business.

Business model

ThinkSmart is a leading digital payments company and provider of leasing finance for both consumers and businesses. ThinkSmart’s
core capability is to provide customer life cycle contract management through its market leading proprietary technology platform
‘SmartCheck’.

ThinkSmart ceased writing new business in February 2021 and as such its leasing business is in managed wind-down.

The Group retains a 10% holding in Clearpay Finance Limited, creating value through exposure to the UK Buy Now Pay Later
digital payments market, and provides an outsourced call centre customer support service for Clearpay.

Risks and uncertainties
The Directors of the Group accept that risk is an inherent part of doing business and actively identify, monitor and manage material
risks. Key material risks faced by the Group are:

The Group is exposed to the risk of default or fraud by its customers

The credit quality of accepted customers and the Group’s policies and procedures to mitigate payment defaults has an impact on the
Group’s financial performance through impairment. Robust credit checking and collection processes combined with continual
development of our [P capability in this area assist in managing and mitigating this risk.

The valuation of financial instruments held by the Group are subject to estimates and judgements

ThinkSmart’s remaining 10%* holding in Clearpay is subject to a 5 year call option by Afterpay and ThinkSmart holds a reciprocal
put option 6 months later to be able to sell the remaining holding to Afterpay at a price calculated on agreed principles based on
market valuations at the time of option exercise. In order to manage the risk associated with this valuation the Group has engaged a
global professional services firm to produce an independent valuation report for the purposes of compliance with IFRS 9 — Financial
[nstruments.

The Group is subject to inherent risks from general macro-economic conditions in the UK, the Eurozone and globally

The Group’s business is subject to general macro-economic conditions in the UK and volatility in the global economic and financial
markets, both generally and as they specifically affect finance providers. The outlook for the UK economy remains somewhat
uncertain as businesses adjust to operating under new UK-EU trade terms following the UK leaving the EU on 31 January 2020.
The changes to consumer behaviour and pent up consumer demand driven by COVID-19 add to the uncertainty in the UK economic
outlook. Adverse economic conditions in the UK, such as unemployment, or dramatic increases in inflation could also have a
negative impact on the financial circumstances of the customers to whom the Group has financial exposure to.

COVID-19

Thanks to operating in a less affected sector of the economy, robust business continuity processes, proactive management and timely
access to government support, the Group has so far been only minimally impacted by COVID-19. While the UK government
enforced the closure of DC retail outlets for part of the financial year the Group continued to originate new and repeat business
through the DC call centre. Having assessed the critical areas of cash flows, going concern, impairment of assets, accounting
estimates and judgements and expected credit losses, the Group has more than adequate resources to meet its liabilities as they fall
due even when stressed to reasonable worst case scenarios.

Prior to the outbreak of COVID-19 the Group already had in place a robust risk management structure which has been augmented
by the adoption of a specific COVID-19 risk assessment and associated updates to operating procedures. In line with UK government
guidance, the Group has facilitated remote working for all staff and supporting a safe working environment with a focus on staff
health and wellbeing. The Group has in place adequate measures to ensure that its going concern status and ongoing performance
will not be materially compromised by the impact of COVID-19.

The Group is exposed to changes in Government policies

Government policies (of both the UK and Australia) are subject to review and change on a periodic basis. Such changes are likely
to be beyond the control of the Group and may adversely affect its operating and financial performance. At present, the Group is
not aware of any reviews or changes that would materially affect its business.
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The consumer credit industry is subject to extensive regulation, and companies operating in this sector are generally
required to obtain authorisation from the FCA

The industry in which the Group operates is subject to a range of legislation and regulations. The Financial Conduct Authority
(“FCA™) is the regulatory body responsible for the consumer credit industry in the UK. The Group’s activities are regulated by a
regulatory framework based on a combination of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and its secondary legislation, the
provisions of the Consumer Credit Act 1974 and the FCA Rules. The volume and demands of regulation, and the regulatory scrutiny
have increased since the transfer of regulatory powers from the Office of Fair Trading to the FCA in 2014.

In February 2021 the FCA published the Woolard Review on how regulation can support the market for unsecured lending including
the developing buy-now-pay-later (BNPL) sector in which Clearpay is a market leader. The report recognises that BNPL offers
consumers a significant alternative to more expensive traditional credit. The report also recognises that the current lack of regulation
creates potential for consumer harm. Clearpay is committed to promoting good consumer outcomes and continues to work with HM
Treasury and the UK Government regarding a proportionate regulatory framework for currently exempt BNPL products.

The Group is dependent on information technology

The Group relies on information technology to process new lease contracts and the Group benefits from software developed for this
purpose. The successful operation of the Group’s business depends upon maintaining the integrity of its computer, communication
and information technology systems. These systems and operations are vulnerable to damage, breakdown or interruption from events
which are beyond the Group’s control, such as fire, flood and other natural disasters; power loss or telecommunications or data
network failures; improper or negligent operation of the Group’s systems by employees, or unauthorised physical or electronic
access; and interruptions to internet system integrity. Any such damage or interruption could cause significant disruption to the
operations of the Group, its ability to trade and its reputation.

The Group is dependent on key personnel and an effective Board

The Group’s continued success depends on its ability to retain current key members of the senior management team, with their
experience and knowledge of the business. While the Group endeavours to retain key management personnel, there can be no
guarantee that its key management personnel will continue in their employment with the Group. Any loss of key members of the
senior management team would disrupt the Group’s operations and may also have a material adverse effect on the Group’s operating
and financial performance and prospects.

Non-financial information Statement

The Board considers that the Group has the necessary resources, controls and risk management processes to professionally manage
the ongoing operations of the business. Details of the board structure and operation, subcommittees and controls are detailed in the
Report of the Directors.

Approval
This Strategic Report was approved by order of the Board

Gary Halton

Secretary

7th Floor, Oakland House, Talbot Road,
Old Trafford, Manchester, M16 OPQ

Date: 13 September 2021



THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Report of the Directors

The Directors hereby submit their Report and the accounts on the consolidated entity (referred to hereafter as the “Group™) consisting
of ThinkSmart Europe Limited (“the Company” or “ThinkSmart Europe™) and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the
year ended 30 June 2021, and the auditor’s report there on.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report, were as follows:
N. Montarello
G. Halton
K. Jones

Strategic Report
The Group’s principal activities, business review, future developments and risks and uncertainties disclosures are set out in the
Strategic Report.

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the directors consider to be appropriate for the following
reasons.

In forming their view, the directors have considered the Group’s prospects for a period exceeding twelve months, from the date the
financial statements were approved. The Company’s parent undertaking, ThinkSmart Limited, provides support in the form of a
loan which it has indicated will not be recalled until the Company is in a position to repay the loan. Provided that the Company
receives ongoing support at the current level the forecasts indicate that the Group will have sufficient funds for the period. As with
any company placing reliance on other group entities for financial support, the directors acknowledge that there can be no certainty
that this support will continue although, at the date of approval of these financial statements, they have no reason to believe that it
will not do so.

The Directors have assessed the impact of COVID-19 on the current and forecast position of the Group. As the Group has only been
minimally impacted the directors confirm that they are satisfied that the Group has adequate resources to meet its liabilities as they
fall due even when stressed to reasonable worst case scenarios. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concemn basis for
preparing the accounts.

Political and charitable contributions
The Company made no political or charitable donations during the year, (2020: £nil).

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and each director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to
have taken as a director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor
is aware of that information.

Auditor
The auditor, BDO LLP, will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

Approval
By order of the board

Gary Halton

Secretary

7th Floor, Oakland House, Talbot Road,
Old Trafford, Manchester, M16 0PQ

Date: 13 September 2021



THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILIITIES IN RESPECT OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in respect of the Directors' Report
and the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have elected to
prepare the consolidated financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards
and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (FRS 101).

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e  for the consolidated financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explain in the financial statements;

e for the parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements and other information
included in the Directors® Report may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

To the best of our knowledge:

e The Group financial statements, prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss
of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole; and

e The Strategic Report and Directors’ Report include a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the company and undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the
principle risks and uncertainties that they face. .



THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the members of ThinkSmart Europe Limited

Opinion on the financial statements

In our opinion:

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs
as at 30 June 2021 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

« the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of ThinkSmart Europe Limited (the ‘Parent Company') and its subsidiaries
(the ‘Group’) for the year. ended 30 June 2021 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Company Balance Sheet, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs

(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and Parent Company'’s ability to continue as
a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other Matter

The comparative period Group figures for the year ended 30 June 2020 are unaudited.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
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THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

o the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic report or the Directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. .

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line

with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Based on our understanding and accumulated knowledge of the Group and Parent Company and the sector in which
they operate we considered the risk of acts which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud and
whether such actions or non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. These included but
were not limited to those that relate to the form and content of the financial statements, such as the Group accounting
policies, International Financial Reporting Standards, UK GAAP, the Companies Act 2006, compliance with FCA
requirements and those that relate to the payment of employees. All team members were briefed to ensure they were
aware of any relevant regulations in relation to their work.

We evaluated management'’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements
(including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate
journal entries, management bias in accounting estimates and improper revenue recognition associated with year-end
cut-off. Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to:

» Agreement of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

e Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates, in
particular in relation to revenue recognition, the estimation of useful lives of assets, carrying value of intangibles
and investments, provision for bad and doubtful debts and valuation and completeness of accruals and other
provisions;

* Revenue year end cut-off procedures;

¢ In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls; testing the appropriateness of journal
entries and other adjustments, in particular any journals posted by senior management, privileged users or with
unusual account combinations;

o Discussions with management and those charged with governance, including consideration of known or
suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud,

+ Review of minutes of Board meetings throughout the period, reviewing correspondence with regulators;

e We also performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate
risks of material misstatement due to fraud;

e We considered completeness of related party transactions; and evaluated the business rationale of any
significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business;

« Obtaining an understanding of the control environment in monitoring compliance with laws and regulations.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising
that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through
collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with
laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we are to
become aware of it.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent
Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

DocuSigned by:
Jalien Rye

~657B35FCEE

Julien ﬁye ‘@gﬁior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Manchester, UK

Date: 13 September 2021

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2021

12 Months to

12 Months to

June 2021 June 2020

Notes £,000 £,000
Continuing operations
Revenue 6(a) 4,286 6,059
Other revenue 6(b) 63 253
Total revenue 4,349 6,312
Customer acquisition cost 6(c) (258) (627)
Cost of inertia assets sold 6(d) (335) (700)
Other operating expenses 6(e) (3,217) (4,615)
Depreciation and amortisation 6(f) (1,401) (2,047)
Impairment gains/(losses) 6(g) 41 2)
Gains on Financial Instruments 6(h) 71,267 54,418
Other gains : 6(i) 1,450 -
Profit before tax 71,896 52,738
Income tax (charge)/benefit 7 - -
Net Profit after tax — attributable to owners of the Company 71,896 52,738
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss, net of income
tax:
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations ' (2) (@)
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss net of income tax . 2) (7)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (2) (7
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the
Company . 71,894 52,731

The attached notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2021
June 2021 June 2020

Notes £,000 £,000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 23(a) 3,789 4,730
Trade receivables 23(c) 56 129
Finance lease receivables 8 38 431
Other current assets 9 299 872
Total current assets 4,182 6,162
Non-current assets
Finance lease receivables 8 - 15
Plant and equipment 13 302 460
Intangible assets 14 590 1,433
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 10 125,000 53,733
Contract assets 11 777 1,430
Other non-current assets 12 2,069 2,147
Total non-current assets ‘ 128,738 59,218
Total assets 132,920 65,380
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 (681) (1,116)
Lease liabilities 17 (103) (94)
Contract liabilities 18 (410) (648)
Provisions 16 (%) (10)
Total current liabilities (1,199) (1,868)
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 17 (45) (148)
Contract liabilities 18 (332) (679)
Other interest bearing liabilities 19 (5,180) (8,415)
Total non-current liabilities (5,557 (9,242)
Total liabilities (6,756) (11,110)
Net assets 126,164 54,270
Equity
[ssued capital 20(a) 1,250 1,250
Reserves 2,598 2,600
Accumulated profits 122,316 50,420
Total equity 126,164 54,270

The attached notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of Thinksmart Europe Limited were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 13
September 2021. They were signed on its behalf by:

ot~

Gary Halton (Director)
Company Number 04610727

13



THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

Company Balance Sheet

As at 30 June 2021
Note

Fixed assets
[nvestments 15
Financial assets at Fair Value through profit and loss 10
Current assets
Cash at bank and on hand
Intercompany debtors 9
Total assets
Current liabilities
Creditors
Loan from ThinkSmart Limited ' 19

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 20(a)
Profit and loss account

Shareholders’ funds

The attached notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

30 June 2021

£,000
4,418

125,000

1,084
246

130,748

4)
(5,180)

125,564

125,564

1,250
124,314

125,564

30 June 2020
£,000

3,935
53,733

3,387
1,163
62,218

(69)
(8,415)
53,734

53,734

1,250
52,484

53,734

The financial statements of Thinksmart Europe Limited were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 13

September 2021. They were signed on its behalf by:

Gltotis—

Gary Halton (Director)
Company Number 04610727
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THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2021

Foreign Attributable

Fully paid currency to equity

ordinary translation Accumulated holders of the

Consolidated shares reserve Profit parent
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Balance at 1 July 2019 1,250 2,607 2,318) 1,539
Profit tor the year - - 52,738 52,738
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations, net of tax - (7N - ()
Total comprehensive income for the year - (7 52,738 52,731
Balance at 30 June 2020 1,250 2,600 50,420 54,270
Balance at 1 July 2020 1,250 2,600 50,420 54,270
Profit for the year - Co- 71,896 71,896
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations, net of tax - 2) - (2)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 2 71,896 71,894
Balance at 30 June 2021 1,250 2,598 122,316 126,164

The attached notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Balance at 1 July 2019
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive profit for the
financial year

Balance at 30 June 2020

Balance at 1 July 2020
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive profit for the
financial year

Balance at 30 June 2021

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Fully paid Accumulated Total Equity
ordinary profit
shares
£,000 £,000 £,000
1,250 61 1,311
- 52,423 52,423
- 52,423 52,423
1,250 52,484 53,734
1,250 52,484 53,734
- 71,830 71,830
- 71,830 71,830
1,250 124,314 125,564

The attached notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for

Depreciation

Amortisation

Impairment losses on finance lease receivable
Cost of inertia assets realised

Gains on financial instruments

Trade receivables, deposits held with funders and leases
Finance lease receivables

Contract asset recognised to revenue

Trade and other creditors

Contract liabilities

Provisions

Net cash from operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Payments for plant and equipment

Payment for intangible assets — software & contract rights
Payments for purchase of financial instruments

Receipts from sale of financial instruments

Net cash from investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Payment of lease liabilities
Payment of other interest-bearing liabilities

Net cash (used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year

Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial period

The attached notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

12 Months to

12 Months to

June 2021 June 2020
£,000 £,000
71,896 52,738
437 820
964 1,227
57 (181)
655 594
(71,267) (54,418)
725 152
465 3,180
(264) (719)
437 (36)
(585) (666)
(6) 517
2,526 3,208
a7 (15)
(122) (494)

- (987)

- 5,376

(139) 3,880
(93) (114)
(3,233) (9,220)
(3,326) (9,334)
(939) (2,246)
@ )
4,730 6,983
3,789 4,730
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THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General Information

ThinkSmart Europe Limited (the “Company”) is a private company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group™). The Group is a for
profit entity and its principal activities during the year were the provision of lease and rental financing services in the UK, and the
holding of a financial asset. The Company’s registered address is 7% Floor Oakland House, Talbot Road, Old Trafford, Manchester,
M16 0PQ.

2. Basis of Preparation

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as endorsed by the United Kingdom Endorsement Board (UKEB), UK-adopted [FRS. The Company’s individual financial
statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (“FRS 101”) and the
Companies Act 2006. They were authorised for issue by the Company’s board of directors on 13 September 2021.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 30 June 2020, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with FRS
101. These financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 are the first the Group has prepared in accordance with IFRS and
therefore the comparative results for the year ended 30 June 2020 are unaudited. Refer to Note 2.3 for information on how the Group
adopted IFRS.

Details of the Group’s accounting policies, including changes during the year, are included in note 3.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and elected not to present
its own Statement of Comprehensive Income in these financial statements.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in relation to
various items as described in note 2.4. Where relevant, equivalent disclosures have been given in the consolidated accounts.

In preparing these financial statements, management have made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
the Group accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively. The areas
where judgements and estimates have been made in preparing the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments measured at fair
value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in British Pounds, which is the Group’s functional currency, and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (£,000), except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Going Concern

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Directors are satisfied that the Group has the
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future (which has been taken as 12 months from the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements). In making this assessment, the Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to
present and future conditions, including the current state of the statement of financial position, future projections of profitability, cash
flows and resources and the longer term strategy of the business. The Directors have assessed the impact of COVID-19 on the current
and forecast position of the Group. As the Group has only been minimally impacted the Directors are satisfied that the Group has more
than adequate resources to meet its liabilities as they fall due even when stressed to reasonable worst-case scenarios.

2.3 First Time Adoption of IFRS

These financial statements, for the year ended 30 June 2021, are the first the Group has prepared in accordance with IFRS. For periods
up to and including the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group did not prepare consolidated financial statements. For periods up to and
including the year ended 30 June 2020 the Company prepared its single entity financial statements in accordance with local generally
accepted accounting principles (Local GAAP).
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THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Accordingly, the Group has prepared financial statements that comply with [FRS applicable as at 30 June 2021, together with the
comparative period data for the year ended 30 June 2020, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing
the financial statements, the Group’s opening statement of financial position was prepared as at 1 July 2019, the Group's date of
transition to [FRS. As the Group did not previously prepare consolidated financial statements there are no adjustments to detail in the
first time preparation of consolidated financial statements and adoption of IFRS.

Exemptions applied :
IFRS 1 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under [FRS. The Group
has applied the following exemptions:

o [FRS 3 Business Combinations has not been applied to either acquisitions of subsidiaries that are considered businesses under
[FRS, or acquisitions of interests in associates and joint ventures that occurred before 1 July 2019. Use of this exemption means
that the Local GAAP carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, that are required to be recognised under IFRS, are their deemed
cost at the date of the acquisition. After the date of the acquisition, measurement is in accordance with IFRS. Assets and
liabilities that do not qualify for recognition under IFRS are excluded from the opening IFRS statement of financial position.
The Group did not recognise any assets or liabilities that were not recognised under the Local GAAP or exclude any previously
recognised amounts as a result of IFRS recognition requirements;

e IFRS 1 requires that the Local GAAP carrying amount of goodwill must be used in the opening IFRS statement of financial
position (apart from adjustments for goodwill impairment and recognition or derecognition of intangible assets). The Group
did not hold any goodwill at 1 July 2019 and therefore no test for impairment of goodwill was required at the date of transition
to [FRS;

e  The Group has not applied [AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates retrospectively to fair value adjustments
and goodwill from business combinations that occurred before the date of transition to IFRS. Such fair value adjustments and
goodwill are treated as assets and liabilities of the parent rather than as assets and liabilities of the acquiree. Therefore, those
assets and liabilities are already expressed in the functional currency of the parent or are non-monetary foreign currency items
and no further translation differences occur;

e The Group assessed all contracts existing at 1 July 2019 to determine whether a contract contains a lease based upon the
conditions in place as at 1 July 2019;

e Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at 1 July 2019. Right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 July 2019. The lease payments associated with leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months of
the date of transition to [FRS and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value have been recognised as an expense on
either a straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis;

e The Group has applied the transitional provisions in IAS 23 Borrowing Costs and capitalises borrowing costs relating to all
qualifying assets after the date of transition. Similarly, the Group has not restated for borrowing costs capitalised under Local
GAAP on qualifying assets prior to the date of transition to [FRS; and

e The Group has designated investments in equity instruments including unquoted equity instruments as equity instruments at
fair value through profit and loss on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at 1 July 2019.

Estimates

The estimates at 1 July 2019 and at 30 June 2020 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Local GAAP.
The estimates used by the Group to present these amounts in accordance with IFRS reflect conditions at 1 July 2019, the date of transition
to IFRS and as at 30 June 2020.
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THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 Disclosure Exemptions — parent Company individual financial statements
In preparing its individual financial statements under FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions
permitted by FRS 101: .

3.

The requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;

The requirements of paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement;

The requirements in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to present comparative information in respect of:
o Paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; and
o Paragraph 118 (e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets.

The requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

The requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors;

The requirements of paragraphs 117 and 18A of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures; and

The requirements in [AS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into by two or more members
of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is party to the transaction is wholly owned by such a member.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Group in preparing its consolidated financial statements:

(@
®

(i)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidianes

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those
applied by other members of the Group. All intra-group balances, transactions, income and ex penses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

(ii1) Subsidiary audit exemption

(b)

©

For the financial year ended 30 June 2021, Thinksmart Europe Limited has agreed to guarantee all outstanding liabilities that certain
subsidiaries are subject to at the end of the financial year. This has entitled these certain subsidiaries to exemption from audit under section
479A of the Companies Act relating to subsidiary companies. The subsidiaries to which this applies are: Rentsmart Limited, Thinksmart
Insurance Services Administration Limited, Thinksmart Financial Services Limited and Thinksmart UK Limited.

Business combinations

For every business combination, the Group identifies the acquirer, which is the combining entity that obtains control of the other combining
entities or businesses. The acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. Judgement is applied in determining
the acquisition date and determining whether control is transferred from one party to another.

Revenue recognition
The Group recognises revenue as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the Group: identifies the contract with a customer; identifies the
performance obligations in the contract; determines the transaction price which takes into account estimates of variable consideration and
the time value of money; allocates the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on the basis of the relative stand-alone
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THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered; and recognises revenue when or as each performance obligation is satisfied
in a manner that depicts the transfer to the customer of the goods or services promised.

Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the customer such as discounts, rebates and
refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the customer and any other contingent events. Such estimates are determined using either
the 'expected value' or 'most likely amount' method. The measurement of variable consideration is subject to a constraining principle
whereby revenue will only be recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur. The measurement constraint continues until the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved. Amounts received that are subject to the constraining principle are recognised as a contract liability.

Some forms of revenue fall outside the scope of IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers, of relevance to ThinkSmart this
includes revenue under IFRS 16 Leases (previously IAS 17) and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

The Group has relationships with retail partners to act as a facilitator and arranger of financing arrangements to allow those retailers to
provide technological products to consumers under short/medium term finance contracts. The financing is obtained by the Group from
third party funding partners.

Depending on the nature of the agreements with those funders, these contracts result in the Group acting as a lessor or as the agent of the
funder (who is then the lessor).

Where the Group is acting as the lessor it follows the treatment outlined in IFRS 16. In accordance with IFRS 16 nearly all the contracts
are considered to be finance leases and the only source of revenue is Finance Lease Income. This Finance Lease Income is recognised on
the effective interest rate method at the constant rate of return. This method amortises the lease asset over its economic life down to the
estimate of any unguaranteed residual value that is expected to be accrued to the Group at the end of the lease.

Where the Group is acting as the agent it receives the following revenue streams:

Commission income

This includes the upfront cash transaction fee receivable from the funder together with the non-cash consideration between the funder and
the end customer (for the contract or inertia asset) which is allocated under IFRS 15 between the inception/brokerage of the lease
arrangement, a financial guarantee contract premium over the lease term, a contract liability reflecting the reversal constraint for the
potential refund of the transaction fee, and the non-cash consideration contract asset accruing over the lease term.

Extended rental income
Once the contract between the funder and the end customer expires the asset becomes the property of the Group and any extended rental
income is payable to the Group, being recognised when receivable.

Income earned from sale of inertia assets
At the end of the extended rental period any proceeds on disposal of the asset are recognised at the point of disposal.

Services revenue — insurance

Lease customers of hire agreements originated by the Group are required to have suitable insurance in respect of the leased equipment. If
these customers do not make independent insurance arrangements the Group arranges insurance and collects the premiums on their behalf,
receiving a commission from the insurer for doing so.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with an original maturity of less than 3 months. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily converted to known amounts of cash which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of
the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives they are accounted for as separate items {major components) of property, plant and equipment. The gain or loss on disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the property,
plant and equipment, and is recognised net within other income/other expenses in profit or loss.
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THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

®

(2

(h)

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual assets are assessed and if a
component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of the asset, that component is depreciated separately. Depreciation is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an item of property, plant and
equipment. The following estimated useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:

o Office furniture, fittings, equipment and computers 3 to S years
e Leasehold improvements the lease term

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. If on review the remaining useful life of any
asset is found to be shorter than its useful life at recognition then the depreciation schedule is accelerated to reflect the shorter remaining
useful life with any adjustment charged to depreciation cost.

Customer acquisition costs .

Customer acquisition costs are capitalised as an asset where such costs are incremental to obtaining a contract between the funder and the
end customer, for which the Group receives commission under the funder contract and are expected to be recovered. Customer acquisition
costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

Costs to obtain a contract that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained or which are not otherwise
recoverable from a customer are expensed as incurred to profit or loss. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract where the contract term
is less than one year is immediately expensed to profit or loss.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables are recognised when the consolidated entity becomes obliged to make future payments resulting from the purchase of
goods and services and measured at fair value.

Financial instruments

The financial instruments held by the Group are the financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in the statement of financial position.
As at 30 June 2021 the financial instruments held by the Group comprised the 10% holding in Clearpay Finance Limited and the Financial
Guarantee Contract with STB. Other assets and liabilities held by the Group excluded from financial instruments include lease contracts
which are accounted for under IFRS 16, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, accruals, prepayments, provisions, tax liabilities
and investments in subsidiaries.

(i) Non-derivative financial assets
The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair
value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

e The Group’s business model for managing the financial assets; and
e  The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

The Group measures a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income having met the criteria specified in IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments in respect of business model and cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest.

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets (including
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the right to
receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a
separate asset or liability. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
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THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Insurance prepayment

In relation to business customers who do not already have insurance, a policy is set up through a third party insurance provider. The Group
pays for the insurance cover upfront and also recognises its income upfront which creates an insurance prepayment on the statement of
financial position. The Group subsequently collects the insurance premium from the customer on a monthly basis over the life of the rental
agreement, which reduces the prepayment. Where a policy is cancelled, the unexpired premiums are refunded to the Group.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets are initially valued at fair value. Transaction costs are included as part of the initial measurement, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Such assets are subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value depending on their
classification. Classification is determined based on both the business model within which assets are held and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.

(i) Non-derivative financial liabilities
The Group initially recognises financial liabilities on the date they are originated. The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Transaction costs consist of legal and other costs that are incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. These costs are capitalised
and then amortised over the life of the loan.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees issued by the Group are recognised as financial liabilities at the date the guarantee is issued. Liabilities arising from
financial guarantee contracts, are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount of expected credit losses
determined under IFRS 9 and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

The fair value of the financial guarantee is determined by way of calculating the present value of the difference in net cash flows between
the contractual payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligation. Any increase in the liability relating to financial guarantees is recognised.
Any liability remaining is derecognised in profit or loss when the guarantee is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(iii) Impairment of assets

Financial assets, including finance lease receivables and loan receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets which are either measured at amortised cost or fair
value through profit or loss. The measurement of the loss allowance depends upon the Group’s assessment at the end of each reporting
period as to whether the financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, based on reasonable and
supportable information that is available, without undue cost or effort to obtain.

Where there has not been a significant increase in exposure to credit risk since initial recognition, a 12-month expected credit loss allowance
is estimated. This represents a portion of the asset's lifetime expected credit losses that is attributable to a default event that is possible
within the next 12 months. Where a financial asset has become credit impaired or where it is determined that credit risk has increased
significantly, the loss allowance is based on the asset's lifetime expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit loss recognised is
measured on the basis of the probability weighted present value of anticipated cash shortfalls over the life of the instrument discounted at
the original effective interest rate. For lease receivables the Group applies the simplified approach as such the loss allowance is based on
the asset's lifetime expected credit losses.

For financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment gains of losses and foreign exchange gains or losses, until the asset is derecognised or reclassified. In all
other cases, the loss allowance in excess of amounts previously recognised is recognised in profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill
and intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting
date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
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()

L))

o

together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or Group of assets (the “cash-generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of
impairment testing, is allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (Group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in the prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Intangible assets
Intellectual property
Intellectual property is recorded at the cost of acquisition and is amortised on a straight line basis over 20 years.

Contract Rights

The contractual rights obtained by the Group under financing agreements entered into with its funding partners and operating agreements
with its retail partners constitute intangible assets with finite useful lives. These contract rights are recognised initially at cost and amortised
over their expected useful lives. In relation to funder contract rights, the expected useful life is the earlier of the initial contract minimum
term or expected period until facility limit is reached. At each reporting date a review for indicators of impairment is conducted.

Software development

Software development costs are capitalised only up to the point when the software has been tested and is ready for use in the manner
intended by management. Software development expenditure is capitalised only if the development costs can be measured reliably, the
product process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient
resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of direct labour and overhead
costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use. The intangible asset is amortised on a straight line basis over
its estimated useful life, which is between 3 and S years. Capitalised software development expenditure is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries and annual leave when it is probable that
settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.

The Group pays defined contributions for post-employment benefit into a separate entity. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the period during which services are rendered
by employees. Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Group is committed, it is probable that settlement will be
required, and they are capable of being reliably measured.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognised
as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Income tax

Current tax

Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable profit or tax loss for
the period. It is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by reporting date. Current tax
payable for current and prior periods is recognised as a liability to the extent that it is unpaid. Carried forward tax recoverable on tax
losses is recognised as a deferred tax asset where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available to offset in future periods.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base of those items.

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that sufficient taxable amounts will be available against which deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses

and tax offsets can be utilised. However, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences giving rise to
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them arise from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities (other than as a result of a business combination) which affects neither
taxable income nor accounting profit. Furthermore, a deferred tax liability is not recognised in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with these investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period(s) when the asset and liability giving
rise to them are realised or settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by reporting date. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Consolidated Entity expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company/Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when it relates to items credited or debited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity, or where it arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, in which case it is taken into account in the determination of goodwill or excess purchase consideration.

(m) Value added tax

(n)

(0)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax (VAT) except:

(i) where the amount of VAT incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of
an asset or as part of an item of expense; and
(ii) receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of VAT.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The VAT component of cash flows arising from investing and
financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between
amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and
the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured
at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation
are presented in profit or loss on a net basis, except for differences arising on the retranslation of a financial liability designated as a hedge
of the net investment in a foreign operation that is effective, which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the after income
tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted average number of shares
assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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®)

@

®

(u)

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities. When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the highest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

Note 10 — financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; and
Note 23(b) — financial instruments.

Government Grants

In the current year the Group has applied for and received government support through the UK government Coronavirus Job Retention
Scheme (CJRS). The Group recognises govemment grants only where it is reasonably certain that the Group will comply with the
conditions attached to the grant and it is reasonably likely that the grant will be received. The CJRS is designed to compensate for staff
costs so the Group recognises grant funding in the period necessary to match it with the corresponding staff costs. A grant receivable as
compensation for expenses already incurred is recognised when it becomes receivable. The Group presents the relevant expenses net of
any grant income received (note 6(e)).

Leases where the Group acts as lessee

The Group recognises assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
On entering a lease contract the Group recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The right of use asset is measured as being equal to the value of the lease
liability at the inception of the lease, plus the initial direct costs incurred and the estimated costs for restoring the property to its original
condition. Depreciation on the right of use asset is charged on a straight-line basis over the ten year period of the lease.

The lease liability in respect of the lease payments due to the lessor is measured at each reporting date as the present value of all future
lease payments due. As the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable the discount rate of 9.14% used is the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate being the STB cost of funds using an estimated 10 year interest rate swap at February 2013. The only lease
held by the Group which is relevant to IFRS 16 is for its office space at Oakland House, Manchester.

New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted

The Group has adopted all of the new or amended International Financial Reporting Standards that are mandatory for the current reporting
period. Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted. The
following Accounting Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021,
but have not had a material effect on the Group:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — IBOR ‘phase 2' (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 139, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

These amendments to various IFRS standards are mandatorily effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January)2021 . As the
Group has no loans whose contractual terms are affected by interest benchmark reform there was no impact on the Group from the adoption
of these amendments.

Accounting policies available for early adoption not yet adopted
A number of new and revised standards issued by the IASB have not yet come into effect. Below are those which are effective in future
accounting periods that the group has decided not to adopt early.
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The following amendments are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2022:
e  Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IFRS 37);
e  Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IFRS 16);
e Insurance Contracts - In June 2020, the IASB issued amendments to [FRS 17, including a deferral of its effective date to 1
January 2023,
e  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (Amendments to [FRS 1, [FRS 9, IFRS 16 and [AS 141); and
e  References to Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3).

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 101, which clarify the criteria used to determine whether liabilities are classified as
current or non-current. These amendments clarify that current or non-current classification is based on whether an entity has a right at the
end of the reporting period to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. The amendments also
clarify that ‘settlement’ includes the transfer of cash, goods, services, or equity instruments unless the obligation to transfer equity
instruments arises from a conversion feature classified as an equity instrument separately from the liability component of a compound
financial instrument. The amendments were originally effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
However, in May 2020, the effective date was deferred to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities,
contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgements, estimates and assumptions on historical experience and
on other various factors, including expectations of future events, management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal the related actual results.

The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Revenue from contracts with customers

When recognising revenue in relation to the provision of services to customers, the key performance obligation of the consolidated entity
is considered to be the point of delivery of the service to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time that the customer obtains the
benefits and control of the service.

Principal vs agent

Judgement is exercised in relation to certain services that the group is providing in relation to leases entered in to by an end customer
with the lessor (STB) as to whether the group is acting as principal in the arrangement or as agent. Management have determined that
having regard to the contractual conditions with STB and the rights attaching to consumer contracts for the leases entered in to by the
end customer with STB that the group is acting as agent and records commission income from STB.

" Financial guarantee contract

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount of expected credit losses
determined under IFRS 9 and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation. The fair value of the financial guarantee is
a key estimate and is determined by way of calculating the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual
payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the obligation. This has been determined from historic data and forward looking estimates to
determine expected default rates. This fair value determines a financial guarantee premium which is recognised as revenue over the term
of the lease between the end customer and STB.

Determination of variable consideration

Judgement is exercised in estimating variable consideration which is determined having regard to past experience with respect to the
expected default rates where the customer (STB) has the right to clawback from the group’s commission income any amount of default
on lease payments due from the end customer under the financial guarantee contract. Revenue in respect of this amount of commission
income will only be recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised under the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Contract right income
A contract asset is recognised where the Group act as agent for the lessor (STB) during an end customer’s minimum lease term with
STB and the Group have a contractual right to an inertia asset at the end of this minimum lease term. Contract assets are recognised as
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revenue accruing over the minimum lease term up to the fair value of the inertia asset at the end of that minimum lease term. The fair
value is determined based on available market data regarding expected returns for a similar risk asset and discounted using a credit risk
rate.

Estimation of useful lives of assets

The consolidated entity determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property, plant
and equipment and finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of technical innovations or some
other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold will be written off or written down.

A. Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 6 - commission income: whether the Group acts as an agent in the transaction rather than as principal; and
Note 8 - leases: whether an arrangement contains a finance lease.

B. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period are discussed below:

Note 3(c) - Determination of consideration of separate performance obligation
Note 11 - measurement of contract asset non-cash consideration; and
Note 18 - measurement of contract liabilities.

Fair Value of Investments

The valuation of the Group’s retained holding in Clearpay Finance Limited (“Clearpay™), following the sale 0f 90% of Clearpay to ASX
listed Afterpay Ltd (formerly Afterpay Touch Group Ltd)(*Afierpay™) on 23 August 2018, is based on the agreed valuation principles
for the purpose of the Afterpay call option to purchase and the Group’s put option to sell the Group’s holding in Clearpay to Afterpay
at any time after 23 August 2023 and 23 February 2024 respectively. On 1 August 2021 Afterpay announced the intended acquisition
of Afterpay by Square Inc with an expectation to complete in the first quarter of calendar year 2022. Under the terms of the agreement
that ThinkSmart has with Afterpay, relating to the sale of the Group's remaining holding in Clearpay, a change of control of Afterpay
gives Afterpay the right to exercise its call option to purchase the remaining shares in Clearpay from ThinkSmart at any time following
said change of control. The key judgements that are critical to the valuation are the interpretation of the agreed valuation principles,
market valuation of Afterpay Ltd in GBP equivalent, and the relevant proportion of this that relates to Clearpay, and the discount to be
applied for minority holding and lack of marketability of Clearpay as a standalone entity. In order to support these judgements,
management have appointed independent valuation experts to advise on this matter. The independent valuation process, in accordance
with the agreed valuation principles, uses the same valuation metrics, multiples and methodologies, including those used-by market
participants and with regard to sell-side analysts, to value the Clearpay business within the Afterpay listed group. The Directors note
that, as at 30 June 2021, Afterpay have included the Group’s put option as a separate financial liability in their accounts at AU$99.9m.

Right of use lease asset and lease liability — IFRS 16

IFRS 16 - Leases requires management to make estimates and judgements in respect of the term of the lease and the discount rate used
where it is not possible to determine the interest rate implicit in the lease. At the reporting date it is reasonably certain that the Group
will not terminate the lease before the minimum term while there is also no indication that it is reasonably certain that the lease will be
extended beyond that date. As it is not possible to determine the interest rate implicit in the lease management have estimated the
discount rate equivalent to the borrowing rate available to the business over the same period as the lease term.

5. Financial Risk Management

Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks from the use of financial instruments:

Credit risk;
Liquidity risk;
Market risk; and
Operational risk.

28



THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing financial risks, and the management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout this
financial report.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework. The Board has
established the Audit and Risk Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring risk management policies. The
Committee reports to the Board of Directors on its activities.

Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate limits and controls,
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect the changes in market
conditions and the Group’s activities. The Audit and Risk Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by
the Group.

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty or customer will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with credit worthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial
loss from defaults. The Chief Financial Officer and Financial Controller have day to day responsibility for managing credit risk within
the risk appetite of the Board. Appropriate oversight occurs via monthly credit performance reporting to management and the Board.

The trading subsidiaries have an obligation to meet the cost of future bad debts incurred by its funders. The funder deposits discussed
below represent security for that credit exposure. Further information is provided in Note 23(c).

To manage credit risk in relation to its customers, there is a credit assessment and fraud minimisation process delivered through its
patented SmartCheck system. The credit underwriting system uses a combination of credit scoring and credit bureau reports as well as
electronic identity verification and a review of an applicant’s details against a fraud database. The credit policy is developed by the Head
of Credit Risk and applied by the Credit Risk Committee with Board approval. The Head of Credit Risk monitors ongoing credit
performance on different cohorts of customer contracts. In addition there exists a specialist collections function to manage any delinquent
accounts.

Credit risk exposure to the funder deposit with Secure Trust Bank is more concentrated, however the counterparty is a regulated banking
institution and the credit risk exposure is assessed as low. The Group monitors the credit risk associated with the funder deposit
counterparty.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. The consolidated
entity manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserve facilities by continuously reviewing its facilities and cash flows. The
Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses and financing subordination requirements.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the
Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising return.

Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk on any corporate borrowings will be assessed by the Board and, where appropriate, the exposure to
movement in interest rates may be hedged by entering into interest rate swaps, when considered appropriate by management and the
Board. As at 30 June 2021 the Group was debt free.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Group’s processes,
personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising
from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the
Group’s operations.
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The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior
management within each business unit. This responsibility is supported by the development of overall group standards for the
management of operational risk in the following areas:

Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of transactions;

Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

Documentation of controls and procedures;

Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address the
risks identitied:;

Ethical and business standards; and

Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. Management aims to maintain a capital structure that ensures the lowest cost of capital available to the
Group. Management constantly reviews the capital structure to ensure it achieves this objective. The Group’s debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

30 June 2021 - 30 June 2020

£,000 £,000

Total liabilities 6,756 11,111
Less cash and cash equivalents (3,789) (4,730)
Net debt 2,967 6,381
Total capital 126,164 54,270
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio 0.02 0.12

For the purposes of capital management, capital consists of share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Board assesses the Group’s ability to pay dividends on a periodic basis. There were no dividends paid in the year ending 30 June
2021 (2020: £nil).
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6. Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

The following is an analysis of the Group’s Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Profit is arrived at after crediting/(charging) the
following items:

12 Months to 12 Months to
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000
(a) Revenue
Commission income 851 2,409
Extended rental income 1,566 1,869
Income earned from sale of inertia equipment 698 727
Outsourced services 863 496
Services revenue — insurance commission 226 398
Interest revenue — other entities 65 88
Fee revenue — customers 17 72
4,286 6,059
(b) Other revenue

Finance lease income 63 247
Other revenue - 6
63 253
Total revenue 4,349 6,312

All revenue is generated in the UK from the following products:
SmartPlan 3,205 5,088
Upgrade Anytime 147 450
Flexible Leasing 68 185
Other/non-product specific 929 589
4,349 6,312

(¢) Customer acquisition costs

Customer acquisition costs relate to commissions payable to our retail partners together with sales and marketing expenses
incurred during the ongoing promotional activity of the finance contracts to new and existing customers.

(d) Cost of inertia assets sold

Cost of inertia assets sold is the write-off of inertia assets, including that transferred from PPE Operating Lease assets
when the end customer terminates their lease agreement during secondary period, upon sale of inertia equipment.
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(e) Other operating expenses

Group

Wages and salaries (i)

Social security costs
Employee pension costs
Share-based payment expense
Employee benefits expense

Occupancy costs

Lease interest charge

Professional services

Finance charges

Losses arising from financial guarantee contract
Recharges from ThinkSmart Ltd

Gain/(loss) on retranslation of AUD loan from ThinkSmart Ltd

Other costs

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000
(1,441) (1,313)
(117) (105)
(93) (78)

- 3
(1,651) (1,499)
(136) (156)
19) (26)
(371) (552)
(92) (379)
(104) - (367)
(603) (1,207)
171 147
(412) (576)
(3,217) (4,615)

(i) Wages and salaries are presented net of government grants received through the UK government Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme. In the year the Group received payments of £30,629 (FY20: £19,372).

The monthly average number of people, including directors, employed by the Group during the year was as follows:

Operational
Administration

Directors’ remuneration
Short-term employee benefits
Social security costs
Share-based payments

Highest paid director

(f) Depreciation and amortisation

(®

Depreciation
Amortisation

Impairment losses
Impairment losses finance leases and receivables
Movement in provision for expected credit losses

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
No. No.

38 30

12 13

50 43

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000

175 159

23 21

- 2

198 182

198 182

437) (820)

(964) (1,227)

(1,401) (2,047)

(16) (182)

57 180

41 2)
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(h) Gains on financial instruments

30 June 2021 30 June 2020

£,000 £,000

Realised gain - 745
Unrealised gain 71,267 53,673
71,267 54,418

In the period to 30 June 2021 unrealised gains arose from the revaluation of the Group’s investment in 10% of Clearpay Finance
Limited (see note 10).

In the period to 30 June 2020 realised gains arose on the disposal of the remaining 125,000 Afterpay Limited (APT) shares on
28 August 2019 at AUS$27.73 (£15) per share. An additional realised gain arose on the trading of 205,000 APT shares, purchased
on 23 March 2020 at AU$9.71 and disposed on 25 March 2020 at AU$15.08. Unrealised gains arose from the revaluation of
the Group’s investment in 10% of Clearpay Finance Limited (see note 10). These amounts are shown above.

(i) Other gains
Fair value gain on financial asset through profit and loss 1,450 -
1,450 -

In the period to 30 June 2021 other gains arose on the settlement of legal claims against Carphone Warehouse as announced on
10 August 2020.

7. Income Tax
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000

Amounts recognised in profit and loss

The major components of income tax (expense)/benefit are:

Current income tax expense - -
Adjustment for prior year - -
Deferred income tax (expense)/benefit

Origination and reversal of temporary differences - -

Adjustment for prior year - -

Total income tax (expense)/benefit - -
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A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit before income tax from continuing operations multiplied by
the applicable income tax rate is as follows:
30 June 2021 30 June 2020

£,000 £,000
Accounting profit before tax 71,896 52,738
At the statutory income tax rate of 19% (FY20: 19%) (13,660) (10,020)
Non-deductible expenses 3) )
Non-taxable gain (Substantial Shareholdings Exemption) 13,541 10,195
Losses brought forward utilised 122 -
Losses carried forward - (174)

Adjustments in respect of prior years - -

Income tax credit/(charge) - R

Deferred tax asset
Accrued expenses - -
Employee entitlements - -

Intangible assets » - -

Total - C.
Net deferred tax asset/(liability) for UK - -
Tax receivable/(payable) - -

Current - -
The Group has an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £1.1m at 30 June 2021 (30 June 2020: £1.0m) being mainly in respect of the

estimated £4.4m (30 June 2020: £5.3m) of UK tax losses carried forward at the substantively enacted UK corporation tax rate of 25%
(30 June 2020: 19%).

8. Finance lease receivables

Group
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000
Current

Gross investment in finance lease receivables 29 207
Unguaranteed residuals 24 331
Unearned future finance lease income ‘ (6) (43)
Net lease receivable 47 495
Allowance for expected credit losses (9) (64)
38 431

Non-current
Gross investment in finance lease receivables - 7
Unguaranteed residuals - 11
Unearned future finance lease income - [§))
Net lease receivable : - 17
Allowance for expected credit losses - 2)
- 15
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30 June 2021 30 June 2020

£,000 £,000

Balance at 1 July 446 3,445
Receipts in respect of lease receivable (511) (3,244)
Finance lease income 62 247
Impairment loss 41 (2)
38 446

All finance leases detailed above have a minimum lease term of 2 years, see note 3(h) for further information on the accounting policy
for these finance leases and note 5 for further information on financial risk management. See note 23(c) for detailed analysis of the
ageing of lease receivables and expected credit losses recognised.

9. Other Current Assets

Group

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000
Prepayments 141 157
Insurance prepayments 4 55
Accrued income - insurance commission (see Note 12(i)) 154 290
Sundry debtors - 370
299 872

Company
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000
Intercompany — RentSmart Ltd (14) 549
Intercompany — ThinkSmart UK Ltd 250 250
Intercompany — ThinkSmart Insurance Services Administration Ltd 10 364
246 1,163

The unsecured intercompany loans have no fixed repayment date and are due on demand. The unsecured intercompany loan to
ThinkSmart UK is interest free.

10. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Group and Company
30 June 2021 30 June 2020

£,000 £,000
Investment in Clearpay Finance Limited 125,000 53,733
125,000 53,733

On 23 August 2018 the Group sold 90% of Clearpay Finance Limited to Afterpay Ltd (formerly Afterpay Touch Group Ltd)}(ASX:APT).
The Group retains a 10% shareholding in Clearpay which is held as an investment at fair value through profit or loss under AASB 9. A
proportion of the 10% shareholding (up to 35%) will be made available by the Group to employees of Clearpay under an employee
share ownership plan ("ESOP"). Afterpay has a call option to purchase the remaining shares held by the Group, exercisable at any time
after 23 August 2023. The Group has a reciprocal put option to sell the remaining shares held by the Group to Afterpay, exercisable
after 23 February 2024. Under either the call or put option, the sale of the Clearpay shares to Afterpay will be at a price calculated on
agreed valuation principles. The Group engaged a third party global professional services firm to value its retained shareholding in
Clearpay at 30 June 2021 for accounting purposes under AASB 9 in accordance with AASB 13 (Fair Value Measurement). The
independent valuation process, in accordance with the agreed valuation principles, uses the same valuation metrics, multiples and
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methodologies, including those used by market participants and with regard to sell-side analysts, to value the Clearpay business within
the Afterpay listed group. This valuation has been undertaken based on publicly available information, reflecting the above and including
a discount of 17.5% to be applied for minority holding and the lack of marketability of Clearpay as a privately owned company, and has
produced a range of values for the Group’s 10% sharcholding in Clearpay. In August 2021 Square Inc (“Square”) and Afterpay
announced the intention for Square to acquire Afterpay in a deal which valued Afterpay at US$29 billion (AU$39 billion). The
transaction is expected to complete in the first quarter of the calendar year 2022. Under the terms of the agreement that ThinkSmart has
with Afterpay, relating to the sale of the Group's remaining holding in Clearpay, a change of control of Afterpay gives Afterpay the right
to exercise its call option to purchase the remaining shares in Clearpay from ThinkSmart at any time following said change of control.
The exercise price for the call option will be determined by the same pre-agreed valuation principles whether or not the option is
exercised early. To reflect the relationship between maturity of customer base and underlying sales the Directors believe that greater
weighting should be assigned to active customers. In line with this the Group has taken the valuation of the 10% shareholding at two
thirds of the range produced by the independent valuation. As the Group has limited control over the setting of the price that it will
receive for the transfer of the ESOP shares to the Clearpay employees, the Group has further discounted the valuation by 35% to
determine the accounting fair value of its retained shareholding in Clearpay to be £125.0m at 30 June 2021. The investment in Clearpay
is a level 3 financial instrument.

Sensitivity of the asset to changes in the principal assumptions
[f all other assumptions remained unchanged, reducing the discount for lack of marketability by 10% would increase the fair value by
£15.2m; increasing the discount for lack of marketability by 10% would reduce the fair value by £15.2m.

The valuation range identified by the independent valuation reflects the sensitivities of the key inputs used in that valuation. If all other

assumptions remained unchanged, selecting a point in the independent valuation range 10% higher would increase the fair value by
£2.7m; selecting a point in the independent valuation range 10% lower would decrease the fair value by £2.7m.

11. Contract assets

Group
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000
Balance at 1 July 1,430 2,032
Recognised as revenue in period (i) 370 858
Recognised as customer acquisition cost (ii) (110) (145)
Transferred to Plant & Equipment Operating lease additions (913) (1,315)
777 1,430
Contract asset revenue to be recognised less than 1 year 215 479
Contract asset revenue to be recognised between 1 and 2 years 71 180
Contract asset revenue to be recognised between 2 and 3 years 10 42
Contract asset revenue to be recognised between 3 and 4 years - 2
296 703

(i) A contract asset is recognised where the Group act as agent for the lessor (STB) during the minimum lease term and have a contractual
right to the inertia asset at the end of the minimum lease term. Contract assets are recognised as revenue accruing over the minimum
lease term building up inertia asset (non-cash consideration) over the minimum lease term.

(ii) Customer acquisition costs are capitalised as an asset where such costs are incremental to obtaining a contract between the funder

and the end customer, for which the Group receives commission under the. funder contract, and are expected to be recovered. Customer
acquisition costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

36



THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12. Other Non-Current Assets

Group

Insurance prepayments
Accrued income - insurance commission (i)
Deposits held by funders (ii)

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000

- 5

48 86

2,021 2,056

2,069 2,147

(i) Accrued income reflects brokerage commission earned from making insurance arrangements on behalf of lessee’s and is net of a
clawback provision. The clawback provision for each reporting year has been estimated to be 30% based on historical experience and

is calculated on the gross commission receivable.

(ii) Deposits held by funders for the servicing and management of their portfolios in the event of default. The deposits earn interest at

market rates of return for similar instruments. See note 23 for further information.
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13. Plant and Equipment

Group

Gross Carrying Amount

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at 1 July 2019

Transferred from contract assets
Transferred to cost of inertia assets sold
Additions

Disposals

Balance at 30 June 2020

Transferred from contract assets
Transferred to cost of inertia assets sold
Additions

Disposals

Balance at 30 June 2021

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2019
Depreciation expense
Disposals

Balance at 30 June 2020
Depreciation expense
Disposals

Balance at 30 June 2021

Net Book Value
At 30 June 2020
At 30 June 2021

Plant &
Plant & Office Lease Equipment
Equipment Right of Use Operating
(UK) Asset Lease Total
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
2,601 690 3,023 6,314
- - 1,315 1,315
- - (587) (587)
14 - - 14
(2,463) - (3,391) (5,854)
152 690 360 1,202
- - 917 917
- - (655) (655)
17 - - 17
(78) - (339) 417)
91 690 283 1,064
2,511) (437) (2,828) (5,776)
(54) (69) (697) (820)
2,463 - 3,391 5,854
(102) (506) (134) (742)
(35) (69) (333) 437)
78 - 339 417
(59) (575) (128) (762)
50 184 226 460
32 115 155 302
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14. Intangible Assets

Group

Gross carrying amount at cost
Balance at 1 July 2019

Effect of movement in exchange rate
Additions

Disposals

Balance at 30 June 2020

Effect of movement in exchange rate
Additions

Disposals

Balance at 30 June 2021

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at 1 July 2019

Effect of movement in exchange rate
Amortisation expense

Disposals

Balance at 30 June 2020

Effect of movement in exchange rate
Amortisation expense

Disposals

Balance at 30 June 2021

Net book value
‘At 30 June 2020
At 30 June 2021

Contract Software Intellectual Total
rights Property

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

1,456 5,697 356 7,509

- - 3 3

385 109 - 494

(1,400) (1,437) - (2,837)

441 4,369 359 5,169

- - (1) (11)

8 115 - 123

41 (2,755) - (2,796)

408 1,729 348 2,485
Contract Software Intellectual Total

rights Property

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
(1,418) (3,587) (321) (5,326)
- - (20 (20)
&X)) (1,153) (17 (1,227)
1,400 1,437 - 2,837
(75) (3,303) (358) (3,736)
- - 9 9
(139) (826) 1 (964)
41 2,755 - 2,796
(173) (1,374) (348) (1,895)
366 1,066 1 1,433
235 355 - 590
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15. Interest in Subsidiaries

Group
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
% of Equity
Country of
Interest in Subsidiaries Incorporation Registered office 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
RentSmart Ltd UK 7% Floor Oakland House, Talbot Road, 100 100
Manchester, M16 0PQ
ThinkSmart Insurance Services UK As above ) 100 100
Administration Ltd
ThinkSmart Financial Services Ltd UK As above 100 100
ThinkSmart UK Ltd UK As above 100 100
ThinkSmart Finance Group Ltd UK As above 100 100
Company
- 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
. £,000 £,000 .
Shares in group undertakings at cost 4,418 3,935

All companies principal activity is Equipment Rental with the exception of ThinkSmart Insurance Services Administration Limited
which arranges insurance for Rental Equipment. The below table shows the movement in investment for each subsidy during the
financial year.

Investment Investment
Subsidiary undertakings 30 June 2020 Additions Disposals Impairment 30 June 2021
RentSmart Limited 3,481 - - 513 3,994
ThinkSmart UK Limited - - - - -
ThinkSmart Financial Services Limited 400 - - - 400
ThinkSmart Insurance Services Administration Limited 24 - - - 24
Smartcheck Sl 30 - 30) - -
Total 3,935 - 30) 513 4,418

16. Trade and Other Payables, and Provisions

Group

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000
Trade and other payables 80 187
GST/VAT Payable 132 92
Other accrued expenses 469 837
681 1,116

Provisions
Risk Transfer cancellation and claims 5 10
5 10
Balance at 1 July 10 34
Additional provisions made in the year - -
Amounts used during the year (5) 29)
Balance at 30 June 5 10
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17. Lease liabilities

Group

Balance brought forward
Rental paid in period
Interest charged

Lease liabilities due within 12 months
Lease liabilities due greater than 12 months

Undiscounted maturity analysis

Lease liabilities due up to 1 year

Lease liabilities due between 1 and 2 years
Lease liabilities due between 3 and 5 years
Lease liabilities due over 5 years

18. Contract liabilities

Group

Balance brought forward
Recognised as revenue in period

Contract liabilities to be recognised as revenue within 12 months
Contract liabilities to be recognised as revenue greater than 12 months

19. Other interest bearing liabilities

Group and Company

Loan from ThinkSmart Limited

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000

242 330

(113) (114)

19 26

148 242

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000

103 94

45 148

148 242

113 113

47 113

- 47

160 273

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000

1,327 1,993

(585) (666)

742 1,327

410 648

332 679

742 1,327

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000

(5,180) (8,415)
(5,180) (8,415)

The directors of the ultimate parent company, ThinkSmart Limited, have indicated that intragroup loans will not be recalled until such

time that the borrower is in a position to repay the loan.
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20. Issued Capital and Reserves
Group and Company
(a) Issued and paid up capital

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£,000 £,000

1,250,001 (2020: 1,250,001) Ordinary authorised shares £1 each (2020: £1) 1,250 1,250
100% of the Ordinary Shares are held by ThinkSmart Limited, the Group’s ultimate parent company.

(b) Dividends
The Group did not declare or pay any dividend in the year ending 30 June 2021 (2020: £nil).

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves
The Group’s reserves are as stated in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and represent the following:

Accumulated profit
Cumulative profit and loss net of distributions to owners.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The cumulative effect of movements in foreign exchange rates on the translation of Group entities with a functional currency other
than the Group’s presentation currency. These amounts are recognised in other comprehensive income.

21. Remuneration of Auditor

The Group’s auditors are BDO LLP.

12 Months 12 Months
to June 2021 to June 2020
. £ £
Audit and review of financial statements provided by BDO 100,250 116,500
22. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Group
June 2021 June 2020
£,000 £,000
Leases where Group acts as agent (not included in the statement of financial
position) 2,583 6,029
Deposits held by funder 2,021 2,056

Under the terms of the UK current funding agreement with Secure Trust Bank (STB) where STB is the lessor, the Group is obliged to
purchase delinquent leases (contracts in arrears for 91 days) from the funder at the funded amount. The Group has entered into a
financial guarantee contract with STB for which the Group has provided a deposit to support future delinquent leases.

The deposit held by funders is recognised as an asset on the Group’s statement of financial position within other non-current assets (see
note 12).
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23. Financial Instruments
Group
(a) Interest rate risk

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest bearing financial instruments were:
Carrying amount

June 2021 June 2020
£,000 £,000

Variable rate instruments
Cash and cash equivalents 3,789 4,730
Deposits held by funder (note 22) 2,021 2,056
Net financial assets 5,810 6,786

Sensitivity analysis
A change in 1% in interest rates would have increased or decreased the Group’s profit for continuing operations by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other factors remain constant.

June 2021 June 2020

£,000 £,000

Effect of 1% increase in rates 58 67
Effect of 1% decrease in rates (58) 67)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements are not materially di fferent to their
fair values.

Fair value hierarchy
The financial instruments carried at fair value have been classified by valuation method.
The different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Key assumptions in the valuation of the instruments were limited to interpolating interest rates for certain future periods where there -
was no observable market data. The majority of financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost. At 30 June 2021 the
Group held the following financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss:

e 10% holding in Clearpay Finance Limited with a fair value of £125.0 million (2020: £53.7 million). The holding in Clearpay is a
Level 3 financial instrument.
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(¢) Credit risk management
The maximum credit risk exposure of the Group is the sum of the carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets. The carrying amount
of the Group’s financial assets that is exposed to credit risk at the reporting date is:

June 2021 June 2020

Note £,000 £,000

Cash and cash equivalents 23(a) 3,789 4,730
Trade receivables 56 143
Lease receivable (current) 8 38 495
Lease receivable (non-current) 8 - 17
Insurance prepayment and accrued income (current) 9 158 345
Insurance prepayment and accrued income (non-current) 12 48 91
Sundry debtors 9 - 370
Deposits held by funders 12 2,021 2,056
6,110 8,247

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets that are exposed to credit risk at the reporting date by types of counterparty is:

June 2021 June 2020

£,000 £,000

Banks (i) : 3,789 4,730
Funders (ii) 2,021 2,056
Insurance partners (iii) 206 436
Retail customers (iv) 38 512
Others 56 513
6,110 8,247

(i) Cash and cash equivalents are held with banks with S&P ratings of A and AA-.

(ii) Deposits held with banks with S&P ratings of A and AA-.

(iii) In the current financial reporting period, 100% (prior year: 100%) of the prepayment relates to RentSmart Limited’s (UK) upfront
insurance premium payments to Allianz on behalf of the rental customer. The premiums are recovered from the customer on a
monthly basis. In the event the customer defaults, the policy is cancelled and Allianz refunds the unexpired premium. Allianz holds

an AA rating with S&P Insurer Financial Strength and Counterparty Credit Rating.

(iv) Retail customers are assessed for creditworthiness against a bespoke credit scorecard based on information drawn from a selection
of industry sources.

The ageing of the Group’s trade and lease receivables at the reporting date was:

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment

June 2021 June 2021 June 2020 June 2020
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
Not past due 66 - 492 2
Past due 0-30 days 19 - 29 4
Past due 31-120 days 10 8 43 30
Past due 121-365 days 17 11 90 43
112 19 654 79

Impairment is measured using a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition in which case the lifetime ECL method is adopted. For receivables, a simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses using a lifetime expected loss allowance is available.
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The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses (ECLs) under IFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for trade and lease receivables. The Group makes specific provisions for lifetime expected credit losses
against these receivables where additional information is known regarding the recoverability of those balances. For the remaining trade
and lease receivables balances, the Group has established an ECL model using provision matrices for recognising ECLs on its trade
receivables, based on its historical credit loss experience over a two year period, adjusted (where appropriate) for forward-looking
factors.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and lease receivables during the year was as follows:

June 2021 June 2020

£,000 £,000

Balance at 1 July ' 79 253
Impairment loss recognised (44) 2)
Bad debt written off (16) (172)
Balance at 30 June 19 79

Trade and lease receivables are reviewed and considered for impairment on a periodic basis, based on the number of days outstanding
and number of payments in arrears, adjusted (where appropriate) for forwards looking factors.

(d) Liquidity risk management
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estlmated interest payments and excluding the impact of
netting agreements:

June 2021 June 2020

£,000 £,000

Trade and other payables 679 1,195
Lease liabilities 148 242
827 1,437

Less than 1 year 782 1,289
1-2 years 45 148
827 1,437

24. Related Party Disclosures

The following were Key Management Personnel of the Group at any time during the reporting period and unless otherwise indicated
were Key Management Personnel for the entire period:

Executive Chairman
N Montarello

Executive Directors
G Halton (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-Executive Directors
Keith Jones

45 -



THINKSMART EUROPE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Key Management Personnel remuneration included in ‘employee benefits expense’ in Note 6(¢) is as follows:

12 months to 12 months to

June 2021 June 2020

£,000 £,000

Short-term employee benefits ' 175 159
Social security costs 23 21
Share-based payments - 2
198 182

25. Parent and ultimate parent undertaking

The smallest group of undertakings for which consolidated financial statements have been drawn up is that headed by ThinkSmart
Europe Limited.

The largest group of undertakings for which group accounts have been drawn up is that headed by the ultimate parent company and

controlling party as at 30 June 2021, ThinkSmart Limited. Consolidated accounts are available from Suite 5, 531 Hay Street, Subiaco,
WA 6008, Australia.

26. Subsequent Events
There has not arisen, in the interval between the end of the financial period and the date of this report, any item, transaction or event of

a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, to affect significantly the operations of the Group,
the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group, in future financial years.
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